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Initial 
Comments 
(06/05/2018): 

Six vendors submitted questions and several more sent notes of interest. The answers below reflect the best available 
information; however, some Tasks may be modified for the RFP depending on the responses in the RFI. If you do not 
participate in the RFI you can still participate in the RFP. Specific counts and baseline information along with greater details 
about the tasks will be provided with the release of the RFP so please be patient with the process as we have some towns 
that are inexperienced in this area. Typical parcel data for our municipalities will be available before the RFP submittal. 
 

The key goals of this project are low annual costs, simplicity of implementation for the municipalities,  
and ease of maintenance. 

  

Question 
Count 

Firm 
# 

Vendor Questions Responses Type and 
Internal Notes 

1 1 Who will maintain the data after 
conversion?  
 

Maintenance is one of the tasks of the RFP so the expectation is that this will be a 
Vendor task. 

Maintenance 

2 1 How will boundary discrepancies 
be resolved? 

You have identified an issue that we will need to address for the RFP in 
consultation with our ED and municipalities but our initial thought is that this will 
be in consultation with the municipal tax assessor. 

Governance 

3 2 Option A: Is WestCOG’s 
preference for a software vendor 
that will supply and maintain a 
CAMA system. Option B:  Or will 
the existing Vision CAMA 
systems remain in place at each 
municipality and regular extracts 
obtained and loaded into the 
WestCOG regional parcel 
database 

Option B unless you wish to provide justification for another approach. The key 
goals of this project are ease of maintenance, low costs, and simplicity. 

Hosting 

4 2 Will the vendor be responsible 
for all hosting and licensing or is 
it possible to leverage existing 
WestCOG ESRI software licenses 

The Vendor should expect to include software licensing in their proposals. But, 
there may be important news regarding this issue for the RFP. Please keep a look 
out for this when the RFP comes out. 

Maintenance 

5 2 The term ‘parcel fabric” is used 
in the RFI.  Does WestCOG seek 
an Esri Parcel Fabric Data Model, 
which will require the migration 
of data into the Fabric or does 
WestCOG seek a single regional 

We seek Vendor input and assessment into the efficacy and cost effectiveness of 
using the Parcel Fabric model. Our initial assessment is that the conversion and 
utilization of the parcel fabric should be a task in the RFP but will not penalize 
Vendors who suggest alternatives or recommend different approaches.  

Data Model (Parcel 
Fabric) 
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parcel database, compiled from 
the various municipalities 
without the explicit need to 
create an Esri parcel fabric 

6 2 Option A Will the selected 
vendor be responsible for 
inputting CAMA updates and 
transactions into the various 
source systems? Option B:  Or 
will the selected vendor be 
responsible for acquiring and 
loading CAMA data, via ETL or 
services, into WestCOG regional 
parcel database on regular 
interval? 

 

Option B is the primary goal but some municipalities may seek vendors for 
assistance in inputting CAMA updates. This option will be included in the RFP. 

Maintenance 

7 2 Can WestCOG provide a list of 
municipalities participating in 
this effort that do not currently 
possess digital tax maps? 

This information will be provided in the RFP but the approximate number is less 
than 10 

Baseline 

8 2 Does WestCOG envision the 
selected vendor maintaining all 
the 39 municipalities tax maps 
moving forward? 

WestCOG and NHCOG envision an inter-regional system that encompasses a 
significant majority of the towns in our region; however, given the nature of CT 
and the unique housing characteristics it is unlikely that will include all towns in 
the near term. 

Long-term Goal 

9 2 Property cards are mentioned in 
the RFI?  Are images of property 
cards available and is there a 
requirement to host and 
maintain these cards as updates 
are made 

A sample property card is available at the following website on page 12 and 13 on 
the westcog regional gis web report found at https://westcog.org/past-
publications 
https://westcog.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/WESTCOG_Regional_GIS_Web_Report_2017_12_12.pdf 

 
Initially, the expectation is that the GIS web map should be able to access the field 
card/property card but the vendor does not necessarily host it (e.g. access through 
an api). 

Visualization 

10 3 - WCOG Report Page 3 – “With 
the assumptions outlined in the 
Cost Summary & Return on 
Investment the system has the 
potential for a 
$19,650.00”?????? The sentence 

Pg3, https://westcog.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/12/WESTCOG_Regional_GIS_Web_Report_2017_12_12.pdf 
 
Savings. 

Cost-effectiveness 
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seems to stop without finishing. 
Can you clarify? 

11 3 - WCOG Report Page 4 – Should 
the number of additional 
communities that do not have 
GIS portals, but do maintain 
online assessor database web 
portals be 7 instead of 5? 5 + 9 
only equals 14 + 2 (don’t have 
anything) = 16 but there are 18 
total communities and only 2 
don’t have either GIS or Assessor 
portals. 7 + 9 = 16 + 2 = 18 total 
communities. 

Pg 4, https://westcog.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/12/WESTCOG_Regional_GIS_Web_Report_2017_12_12.pdf 
This document is referencing WestCOG only. (16/18 have assessor databases and 
9/18 have GIS portals) More information about the entire region (both WestCOG 
and NHCOG) will be included in the RFP. For the purposes of this RFI, assume that 
NHCOG has a lower rate of both. 

Baseline 

12 3 - WCOG Report Page 8 & 9= 
What does the yellow 
highlighted “Various” and 
“WestCOG” values in the Source 
column of Table 7? 
WCOG Report Page 36 & 37 
(Appendix A) – do the existing 
parcel layers all have required 
parcel annotations and 
centroids? 
 

• Ignore yellow highlights—pdf problem.  

• Not sure what the “required parcel annotation” means.  

• Parcels do not have centroids 

Baseline 

13 3 - WCOG Report Page 11 – link to 
New Fairfield CT site does not 
work. Please provide.  

http://hosting.tighebond.com/NewFairfieldCT_Public/ Baseline 

14 3 WCOG Report Page 22 – please 
expand on the criteria to be used 
on and the process for the CAMA 
Error Resolution 

Pg 22, https://westcog.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/12/WESTCOG_Regional_GIS_Web_Report_2017_12_12.pdf 
 
The vendor will provide this services as part of the services for the RFP in Task 4. 
Some BMPs will be referenced in the RFP but vendor expertise is sought for this 
task. 
 

Governance and 
Maintenance 

15 3 WCOG Report Page 26 – will 
WestCOG be handling the 
Outreach section 
recommendations or will 

Pg 26, https://westcog.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/12/WESTCOG_Regional_GIS_Web_Report_2017_12_12.pdf 
 

Scope 
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support from the vendors be 
needed for this as well? 

WestCOG will help facilitate these outreach efforts through our relationships with 
these municipalities but the vendor by necessity will be involved initially to 
manage workflow and data issues. 

16 3 - WCOG Report Page 26 – there 
is an Error! Reference source not 
found in the Data Collection 
paragraph. While Table 19 
includes an estimated 
maintenance cost, will the 
missing file also be conveyed 

I believe the error points to table 18 on page 27. Error 

17 3 - Does WestCOG have ArcGIS 
Online and/or the ability to 
house this data in house to 
reduce cost? Any description of 
the in-18house GIS environment 
(staff expertise, hardware, 
software, data management - 
file gdb or enterprise SDE, etc.) 
would be most helpful 

WestCOG does have access to ArcGIS Online, ArcServer and some inhouse server 
capabilities. In addition, the staff includes several people with intermediate to 
expert geospatial skills. We have had a very poor experience with Portal. 

Baseline 

18 3 - Approximately how many 
municipalities have their data in 
a parcel fabric format? 

This information should be available for the RFP—only a few. Baseline 

19 4 May vendors respond to the 
future RFPs, even if they do not 
respond to the RFI? 

Yes. Scope 

20 4 Is WestCOG planning on doing 
much of the migration process 
themselves? Does WestCOG 
have staff to perform the 
migration themselves? 

The intention of the RFP is to get pricing on this task (see Task 4) and there is some 
limited internal capabilities. 

Scope 

21 4 IS WestCOG open to the prime 
vendor supplementing their 
processing labor with off-shore 
labor (sub-contractor staff)? 

Yes. The prime vendor should clearly spell out which tasks are being offshored or 
submitted to subcontractors. 

Scope and 
Methodology 

22 4 Is the parcel fabric mentioned in 
the RFI referring to the Esri 
Parcel fabric or another format 
(CAD)? 

ESRI. Data Model 
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23 4 Is it the intent of WestCOG to 
implement the Esri Parcel 
Fabric? 

Yes. See question 5 above. Data Model 

24 4 Option A: If the Esri Parcel Fabric 
is the target technology, Is it the 
intent of WestCOG to outsource 
the migration of the digital 
parcel data to the parcel fabric? 
Option B: Or is WestCOG looking 
for a workshop approach, in 
which the vendor would train 
WestCOG staff to perform the 
migration? 

Option A is the primary intent of the project. However, we will consider Version B 
if there is a justification, cost savings, or maintenance advantage. 

Data Model and 
Methodology Issues 

25 4 Once this regional database is 
established, who will maintain 
the data? Will it be each 
municipality, or will the data be 
maintained by WestCOG? 

The municipalities will maintain the data. Maintenance and 
Governance 

26 4 Are there State standards for Tax 
Maps that the regional GIS must 
support? If so, would WestCOG 
please direct prospective 
vendors to those standards? 

No. CT does not have these types of standards. State Governance 

27 4 Table 6 lists Boundary Layers 
which includes parcels. Are the 
parcel boundaries lines or 
polygon feature types? 

Boundary lines. Data Model 

28 4 The table lists Lot and Parcel ID 
as an annotation layer. Do the 
municipalities maintain “Lots” 
(Conveyance Division) as 
Polygons? Lines? Or do they only 
maintain tax parcels? 

Tax parcels. Maintenance 

29 4 If WestCOG hosts the regional 
CAMA, has it made a decision on 
which CAMA system would be 
used to store the parcel 
information? 

WestCOG will not host the CAMA system. Maintenance and 
Governance 
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30 4 Would WestCOG release a list of 
interested vendors who asked 
questions? 

Approximately eight vendors have contacted WestCOG and NHCOG and six have 
submitted questions. The vendors include national, regional, and state scale 
companies. Before the submittal of the RFP, vendors will have a chance to ask 
questions in a phone call. Vendors attending this call will need to identify 
themselves. Anonymity of the vendors will be maintained during the RFI. 

Scope 

31 5 On page 4 the RFI states “3. The 
conversion of existing GIS parcel 
data layers into a “Parcel Fabric” 
and the term “parcel fabric” is 
used elsewhere in the RFI. Does 
this imply a specific 
requirement to use Esri’s Parcel 
Fabric? 

See question 5 above. Data Model 

32 5 For Task 6: Ongoing 
Maintenance, (Option A) are you 
only looking for 
updates/refreshes of provided 
parcel and CAMA data on the 
regional viewer website? Or 
(Option B) are you also looking 
for the actual edits 
to be made to each community’s 
GIS parcel data? 

Primarily Option A. However, Option B will be included in the RFP as a potential 
service as some of the smaller municipalities have limited staff and internal 
capabilities. 

Maintenance 

33 6 Is it the expectation that the GIS 
viewer will allow for searches 
across all of the 
municipalities?  In other words, 
is it expected to be seamless or 
is the preference for it to allow 
for searches within one 
municipality at a time? 

Seamless Scope 

34 6 Will existing municipal GIS 
viewing applications continue to 
operate after the release of the 
regional viewing application? 

That will be the decision of each individual municipality. Scope 

35 6 Is there an expectation that data 
editing capabilities will be 
available through the regional 
application or is it intended for 
viewing only? 

At this time, this will be a viewer only unless a vendor believes in the cost 
effectiveness and efficiency of a different solution. 

Scope 
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36 6 On a related note, we’ve 
attempted to download the 
parcel data available through 
your website, and it appears that 
the ftp site it’s hitting is timing 
out.  We’d like to have the 
opportunity to look at the parcel 
data before responding to the 
RFI.  Would it be possible for you 
to take a look at the issue with 
the data download? 

Unfortunately, we are undergoing a server migration at this time and our FTP 
capabilities are on hold until further notice. We will provide parcel samples for 
Vendors when we release the RFP. There are many but not universal 
commonalities among the schema attributes. 

IT 

37     

38     
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